- Division of Labor and Industry
’ ﬁ?. Mar y' an d Maryland Occupational Safety and Health (MOSH)

10946 Golden West Drive-Suite 160
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Telephone Number: 410-527-4499
Fax Number: 410-527-4481

Citation and Notification of Penalty

lo: Inspection Number: 1599735

Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/05/2022
DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Clinic Case No.: J8798-012-22

1515 West North Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21217

Inspection Site:
1515 West North Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21217

This is an official charging document which has specific deadlines for actions and is known as a Citation and
Notification of Penalty (this Citation) which describes violations of the Maryland Occupational Safcty and Health Act
(Labor & Employment Article, Titles |, 2 and 5) and Regulations. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these
violations. You must abate the violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the pcmnm_nnkm_.uhm
lﬁnﬁmmcludnmmm_&gc holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty

¢ Commissioner at the address shown above. Issuance of this citation does not constitute a
finding that a violation of the Act has occurred unless there is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested,
unless this citation becomes a final order of the Commissioner.

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a prominent
place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited hercin, or, if it is not practicable because of the nature of the
employer’s operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation must remain posted until
the violation(s) cited herein has (have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding weckends and State holidays),
whichever is longer. The penalty dollar amounts need not be posted and may be marked out or covered up prior to

posting.

Types of Violations - Violations are characterized as follows: (1) Willful - a violation where either: (a) the employer
committed an intentional and knowing violation of the Act or Regulations or (b) though the employer was not intentionally
violating the Act or regulations, he or she acted with plain indifference to or in carcless disregard of employer
responsibilities under the Act; (2) Serious - a violation where there is a substantial probablhl) that death or serious physical
harm could result, unless the employer did not know and could not know through the exercise of reasonable dtllgcncc the
existence of the violation; (3) Other - a violation that has a direct relationship to job safety and health, but which is not a
serious violation; (4) Repeated - a violation of the same or similar standard for which an employer has Been previously
cited and which has become a final order; and (5) Failure to Correct - a violation for which a citation has been issued and
the employer has failed to correct the violation within the permitted period for its correction,
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Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and ludustry Case No.: J8798.012-22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: O6/04/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Informal Conference - An mformal conlerence is not required. However, if you wish to have such a conlerence you may
request one durng the 15 working day comtest perniod. Durmng such an mformal confercice you miay present evidence
concerning abaterment or views whuch you bebeve would support an adjustment 1o the eitationds) and/or penaltyfies).

IF you are considenng a request for an informal conference o discuss any issues related to this Citation and Notilication of
Penalty, you must take care to schedule it carly enough to allow tme prior to the expiration of your contest penod. Please
keep in mind that a wntten letter of mtent to contest must be submitted 1o the Commuissioner within 15 working days of your
receipt of this Citation. The running of this contest penod i1s not mterrupted by an mformal conference.,

Il you decide to request an imformal conference, please complete, remove suud post page 4 (Notce 10 Employees) next 1o
this Cuation and Notification of Penalty as soon as the ume, date, and place of the mformal conference have been
determumed. Be sure 1o bring to the conference any and all supporting documentation ol existing conditions as well as any
abatement steps taken thus far. Il conditions warraut, the agency may settle this matter without litigation or contest.

Right to Contest - You have the right to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You may contest all citation
ucms or only uulmdual items, You may also contest pcua!ucs mhd/or abatement dates mlhoul mnlcs(mg the undui)'mg

Penalty Payment - Penaltics are due within 15 working days of receipt of this notification unless contested. Make your
check or money order payable to "Division of Labor & Industry/ MOSH®, Please mdicate the Case No. on the remittance.

MOSH does not agree 1o any restrnictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money order for less than the
Tull amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions, conditions, or endorsements do not exist.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The L prohibits discrimunation by an employer agamst an employee for filing a
complant or for excraising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that he/she has been discnnminated aganst
may lile a complaint no later than 30 days alier the disenmiration occurred with the Commissioner at the address shown
above.

Contest By Employees - The law gives an employee or lis/her representative the opportunity to object to any abatement
date set for a violation if he/she believes the date 1o be unrcasonable. The contest must be mailed to the Commissioner
the address shown above and postmarked within 15 working days (excluding weekends and State holidays) of the receipt by
the employer of thas Citation and Notlication of Penalty.
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Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Dvision of Labor and Industry Case No.: JB798.012-22
Maryland Oceupatonal Salety and Health (MOSHD Inspection Date: 06/03/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: OR/17/2022

Notification of Corrective Action - For violatons which you do not contest, you must notily the Commnissioner
promptly by letter or the enclosed Abatement Venlicanon Respouse lorm that you have taken appropriate corrective action
within the tume frame set forth on this Citation. Please nform the Commuissioner i writing of the abatcrnent steps you have
taken and of their dates, ogether with adequate supportng documentation, ¢.g., drawings or photographs ol corrected
cordditions, purchase/work orders related 10 abatement actions, ur samplog results, cte. An additional atation, possibly with
a penalty, maybe issued if abatement venlication/documentation is not received.

Inspection Activity Data - You should be aware that OSHA publishes information on its mspection and citation activity
on the Internet under the provisions of the Electromie Freedom of Information Act. “The mformation related to these
alleged violations will be posted when our system mdicates that you have received this etation, but not sooner than 30
calendar days afier the Citation Issuamnce Date. You arce encouraged 1o review the information conceming your establishment
at WWW.OSHA.GOV. Il you have any dispute with the accuracy ol the information displayed, please contact thus office.
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Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Eabor and Industry Case No.: 18798.012-22

MarvEumid Occupational Safety and Health (MOSIEHD Inspection Date: 060202207 052022
Issuance Date: O8/17/2022

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An mformal conference has been scheduled with MOSH to discuss the citaton(s) issued on

08/17/2022. The conference will be held at:

(locaton)

on at am/pm.

Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend an informal conference.

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES - Auy Employec or representative of employees who believes that any period of time
fixed i this Cuaton for the correction of a violation s unreasonable bas the nght o contest such time for correction by
submitting a letter to the Commissioner at the address shown above within 15 work days (excluding weckends and state
holidays) of the issuance of this atation,

EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATION UNLAWFUL - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
employee for filing a complaint or for exerasing any nghts under the Marvland Occupational Safety and Health Act. An
cmployee who behieves that he or she has been discrmmnated against may file a complant with the Commisssoner at the
address shown above no later than 30 days alter the discoomination.
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Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and Industry Case No.: J8798-012.22
Mirvland Occupanonal Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022
Citati § Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Mayor & City Couneil of Balimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Balumore, MD 21217

i« nla Type ol Violanon:  Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(g)(8): The emplover did not ensure that safety data sheets were readily accessible
during cach work shiflt to emplovees when they were in their work arca(s):

(a) Date of Violaton: 06/03/22

Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not himited to, Birex Quat Wipes, a
category 2 chemical, capable of causing serious eye irmtation and a category 3 flammable
liquid,

Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, training certification, etc) is
required for this item.

atnon Mu

Citation | Item 1 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(h)(3)(iv): Employee training did not include the details of the hazardous
communication program developed by the employer, including an explanation of labels received on
shipped containers and the work place labeling system used by their employer, and the safety data sheet,
including the order of informaton and how the employees can obtain and use the appropriate hazard
information:

(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22

Condition: Employees used Birex Quat Wipes to disinfect frequently touched services, a category 2
chemical, capable of causing senous eye irritation and a category 3 flammable liquid, where
employees were not trained regarding the new label elements and safety data sheets format.

See pages | dwoagh 4 of this Castion and Notfication of Penalty for nloemason o employer asd employee nghits and resposissiulines,
Citation and Notification of Penalty Page Sof 11 MDOLDLIMDOSH-2(Rev, 072019)




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Dasion of Labor and Industry Case No.: J8798-012.22

Maryland Occupanonal Salety and Healdy (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/053/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citati § Notification of Penal

Company Name: Mayor & City Couneil of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West Noeth Avene, Balumore, MD 21217

Cuaton 2 liem | Type ol Violaton:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.132()(2): The emplover did not venly, through a written certilication, the identity of the

workplace evaluated, the person certifying that the evaluanon had been performed, and the date the
hazard assessment was done:

(a) Date of Violaton: 06/03/22

Citation 2 Item 2 Type of Violation:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.1030(c)(1)(iv): The Exposure Control Plan was not reviewed and updated at least annually
and whenever necessary as required.

(a) Date of Violaton: 06/03/22
Condition: Employees were potentally exposed to bloodborne pathogens while using needles to
admunister medications by injection and while drawing blood for laboratory testing.

Summary Citahon and Notificaten of Penalty Page 6ol 11 DILR/DEUMDOSH-2(Rev. 694)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Diwviston of Labor and Industry Casc No.: J8798-012-22

Manyland Oceupational Sadety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citati i Notilication of Penal

Company Name: Mayor & City Counal of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltmore, MD 21217

Citanon 2 Item 3 Type of Violanon:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.1030((2) () (B): The emplover did not ensure that the traiming was provided to employees
with occupational exposure at least annually:

(@) Date of Violaton: 06/03/22

Condinon: Employees were potentially exposed to bloodborne pathogens while using needles to
administer medications by injection and while drawing blood for laboratory testing, where
training was last provided in 2019,

Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, training certification, etc.) is
required for this item.

Summary Crtatson and Notificatyon of Penalty Page Tol 11 DLLRDLIMDOSH-2(Rov. 694)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Diviston of Labor and Industry Case No.: J8798-012-22
Manviand Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citation and Notification of Penalty
Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MDD 21217

Citation 2 Item 4 Type of Violanon:  Other-than-Senious

29 CFR 1910.1200(e)(D(): The employer did not compile a list of the hazardous chemicals known to be
present using a product identifier that was referenced on the appropniate safety data sheets:

(2) Date of Violation: 06/03/22

Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not limited to, Birex Quat Wipes, a
category 2 chemical, capable ol causing serious eye intation and a category 3 flammable
liquud.

Michael A, Penn, CSP, SMS
Acting Assistant Commissioner

Summary Citation and Notfication of Penaity Page 3ol 11 DLLRDLIMDOSH-2(Rev. 654)




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Dmasion of Labor and Tudustry Case No.: 18798-012-22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Healitls (MOSH) Inspection Date: O6/03/2022.07/05/2022

Issuance Date: O8/17/2022
Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Mayor & Cuy Couneil of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Balimore, MD 21217

INVOICE/
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number: 1599735

Citation 1 Item la, Serious
Citation | Item b, Serious
Citation 2 Item 1, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 Item 2, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 Item 3, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 ltem 4, Other-than-Serious

TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES:

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

Sumesary Craton and Notificabon of Penalty Page 9ol 11 DLLRDLIMDOSIH-2(Rev. 6494)




Maryland Department of Labor
Division of Labor and Industry
Manvknd Occupatonal Safety and Health (MOSH)

Inspection Number:
Case No.:
Inspection Date:
Issuance Date:

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health

Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217

ABATEMENT VERIFICATION RESPONSE

Return To:

Maryland Occupational Safety and Health
10946 Golden West Drive, Suite 160
Hunt Valley, MD 21031

1599735

J8798-012-22
06/03/2022-07/05/2022
08/17/2022

As a result of the inspection/investigation conducted at your establishment, certain alleged hazards/violations were disclosed as indicated in the enclosed CITATION(s).
YOU ARE OBLIGATED BY LAW to correct hazardous conditions or practices in your workspace.

Please complete this ABATEMENT VERIFICATION RESPONSE and return it to the Agency at the above address as soon as possible by indicating what action you have
taken 1o correct the violation(s) and date corrections were made within the time frame set forth, USE ADDITIONAL PAPER AS NECESSARY.

Citation Description Type
1-1a 1910.1200(gX8) Serious

1-1b 1910.1200(h )3 Xiv) Serious

2-1 1910.132(dX2) Other-than-Serious
2-2 1910.1030(c)( 1 )(iv) Other-than-Serious
2.3 1910.1030(g)2Xii)XB)  Other-than-Serious
2-4 1910.1200(e) 1 )(i) Other-than-Serious

Abatement Due Date Describe Action Taken Date Corrected

August 25, 2022
September 20, 2022
August 25, 2022
August 25, 2022
September 20, 2022

August 25,2022

See pages | dwough 4 ol thas Crtation and Notlicasoa of Penaldty for informanon on employer and employee nghits and respotsabilines.

Citation and Negification of Penalty

Page 100f 1]
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Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and Industry Case No.: J8798-012-22
Marylnd Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217

Allected employees and their representatives were informed on ol abatement steps taken.
Date

I certify that the above statements are true and correct.

Company Representative Title

See pages | dwough 4 of this Citason and Nowlication of Penalty for informason on employer s emyployee rghts s resposiabilioes.
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Division of Labor and Industry
28Ma ryland Miaryland Occupational Sy and Health (MOSIT)

10946 Golden West Drive-Suite 160
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Hunt Valley, MD 21031

Telephone Number: 410-527-4499
Fax Number: 410-527-4481

Citation and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 1599735

Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/05/2022
DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Clinic Case No.: J8798-012-22

1001 East Fayette Street
Baltimore, MD 21201

Inspection Site:
1515 West North Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21217

This is an official charging document which has specific deadlines for actions and is known as a Citation and Notification
of Penalty (this Citation) which describes violations of ‘the MuyluﬁgOecupauoml Safety and Health Act (Labor &
Employment Article, Titles 1, 2 and 5) and Regulations. The penalty(ics) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. You
must abate the violations referred 1o in this Citation by the dgg_l_g_gg_g_mmmm_glu@, unless within 1S working days
mmmmre holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty you mail a notice of

h ¢ address shown above. Issuance of this citation does not constitute a finding that a violation
of lhc Act has ovcun'ed unlm there h a failure 1o contest as provndcd for in the Act or, if contested, unless this citation
becomes a final order of the Commusnonet

Posting - Thc]aw requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a prominent
place at or nqnhe location of the violation(s) cited herein, or, if it is not practicable because of the nature of the employer's
operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation must remain posted until the
violation(s) cued hercin has (have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding weekends and State holidays), whichever
is longer. The penalty dollar amounts nced not be posted and may be marked out or covered up prior to posting.

Types of Violations - Violations arc characterized as follows: (1) Willful - a violation where cither: (a) the employer
committed an intentional and knowing violation of the Act or Regulations or (b) though the employer was not intentionally
violating the Act or regulations, he or she acted with plain indifference 1o or in careless disregard of cmployct responsibilities
under the Act; (2) Serious - a violation where there is a substantial probability that death or serious physical harm could
result, unless the employer did not know and could not know through the exercise of reasonable diligence, the existence of
the violation; (3) Other - & violation that has a direct relationship to job safety and health, but which is not a serious violation;
(4) Repeated - a violation of the same or similar standard for which an employer has been previously cited and which has
become a final order; and (5) Failure to Correct - a violation for which a citation has been issued and the employer has failed
to correct the violation within the permitted period for its correction.

Catation and Notification of Ponalty Page lof 11 MDOL/DLIMDOSEE2(Rev, 0772019




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599745

Division of Labor and Industry Case No.: 18798.012.22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 0608/ 202207 05/2022
Issuance Date: OR/17/2022

Informal Conference - Au informal conference s not required. However, if you wish to have such a conlerence you may
request one dunng the 15 workig day contest penod. Dunng such an imformal conference you may present evidence
concening abatement or views which you believe would support an adjustment 1o the citationts) and/or penalty(ies).

Il you are considening a request for an mformad conference to discuss any ssues refated to this Cuatton and Notficaton of
Penalty, you must take care to schedule it carly enough to allow time prior (o the expiration of your contest period. Please
keep mmind that a wntten letter of mtent 10 contest must be submitted to the Commissioner withun 15 working days of your
receipl of this Cuation. The running of thus contest penod 1s not interrupted by an mformal conference,

I you decade to request an mlormal conference, please complete, remove and post page 4 (Notice 1o Employees) next o this
Citation and Notificaton of Penalty as soon as the time, date, and place of the mformal conference have been determined.
Be sure 10 bring to the confercnce any and all supporung documentaton of existing condiuons as well as any abatement steps
taken thus far. If conditions warrut, the agency may scitle this matter without liugation or contest.

Right to Contest - You have the nght to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You may contest all citation iterms
or only nxll\'ulual items. You meay \lw contest penaltics and/or al)au:ma’l dates without contesting the umlcrlymg \1olalunu
nless you inforn Jommissioner in writing that you ~-1‘-:~. » contest the citation(s) and/or penalty(ics) wi 15 working

Penalty Payment - Penaltes are due within 15 working days of w of this notification unless contested. Make your
cheek or money order payable 1o 'Dnmon of Labor & Industry/ MOSH®, Mc indicate the Case No. on the remittance.

2

MOSH does not agree (o any ncslﬁﬂious or conditions or endorsements pu_t'oul any check or money order for less than the
full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if lhcse restrictions, conditions, or endorsements do not cxist.

Employer Ipscrimlnn(ion Unlawful - The ko prolubits diserimination by an employer against an employee for [iling a
complaint or for excrasig any nghts under this Act. An cmployee who believes that he/she has been diseniminated agaimst
may file a oomplauu no later than 30 days alter the diserimimation occurred with the Commissioner at the address shown
above, '

T L4

Contest By Em - The law gives an employee or lus/her representative the opportunity to object 1o any abatement
date set for a violation lf hthhc believes the divte to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to the Commissioner at the
address shown above and postmﬂiod within 15 working days (excluding weckends and State holidays) of the receipt by the
employer of this Citation and Notification of Penalty.

Citation and Natificatson of Penalty Page 2ol 11 MDOL/DEMDOSH-2(Rev, 0772019



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Divasion ol Labor and Industry Casc No.: 18798.012.22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 0GR/ 2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: OR/17/2022

Notification of Corrective Action - For viokations wlhich you do not contest, you must notify the Commussioner promptly
by letier or the enclosed Abatement Venlication Response lorm that you have taken appropriate corrective action withun the
ume lrame set forth on this Cuation, Please inform the Commussioner in writing of the abatement steps you have taken and
ol thewr dates, together with adequate supporting documentation, ¢.g., drawings or photographs of corrected conditions,
purchase/work orders related 10 alstement actions, air sampling results, ete. An additional aitation, possibly with a penalty,
maybe issued if abatement venlicason/documentation is not received.

Inspection Activity Data - You should be aware that OSHA publishes information on its inspection and eitation activity
on the Internet under the provisions of the Electronie Freedom of Information Act. The mformation relaed 1o these alleged
violations will be posted when our system indicates that you have received thus citation, but not sooner tan 30 calendar days
alter the Ciaton Issuance Date. You are encouraged 1o review the iformation concerning your establishment
WWW.OSHA.GOV. If you have any dispute with the accuracy of the mformation displayed, please contact this office.

Catation and Netificatson of Penalty Page Jof 11 MDOL/DIIMDOSH-2(Rev. 0772019




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and Tudustry Case No.: I8798-012-22
MauvEud Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: O8/1 7/ 2022

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conlerence has been scheduled with MOSH 1o discuss the citaton(s) ssued on

08/17/2022. The conlerence will be held at:

(location)

on at _ am/pm.

Employees and/or representatives of employees have a rightto attend an informal conference.

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES - Auy Employce or representative ol employees who believes that amy period of tme
fixed m this Citaton lor the correction ol a violation s unreasonable has the nght 10 contest such ume for correction by
submitting a letter to the Commissioner at the address shown Abovc within 15 work days (excluding weekends and state
holidays) of the issuance of this citation.

E.MPLOYER DISCRIMINATION UNLAWFUL - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
employee for filing a complant or lor excrcismg any nghts under the Maryland Occupational Salety and Health Act. An
cmployee who believes that he or she has been diseriminated against may file a complaint with the Commussioner at the
address shown above no later tan 30 days alier the diserimination.

Citanos and Notfication of Penalty Page dol’ 11 MDPOL/DLUMDOSH-2(Rev, 1002015



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Diasion ol Labor and Tidustry Case No.: J8798-012-22

Manyland Occupational Safety and Heahlh (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022-07/0.5/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenne, Balumore, MD 21217

Citanon | Ttem | a Type ol Violanon:  Senous

29 CFR 1910.1200(2)(8): The employer did not ensure that safety data sheets were readily accessible
during cach work shift to emplovees when they were in their work arca(s):

(a) Date of Violatuon: 06/03/22

Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not imited to, Birex Quat Wipes, a
category 2 chemical, capable ol causing serious eye irmitation and a category 3 flammable
liquad,

Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, tmmn; certification, etc) 1s
required for this item.

Citation 1 ltem 1 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(h)(3) (iv):Employee traming did not mcludclbc details of the hazardous
communication program developed by the emplover, mcludmg anexplamuon of labels received on
shipped containers and the work place labeling system used by their employer, and the safety data sheet,
including the order of ml'ormahat and how the cmployees can obtain and use the appropnate hazard
information:

(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22

(,ondmon' Employees used Birex Quat Wipes to disinfect frequently touched services, a category 2
t:l)emlcal capable of causing serious eye uritation and a category 3 [lammable liquid, where
prloyccs were not trained regarding the new label elements and salety data sheets format.

Sce pages | through 4 of thas Citaon and Notibicabon of Ferabty for sormation on cmployes and canployee nghils and respoassbedies.
Citation and Notficatsn of Penalty Page Sof 11 MDOL/DLIMDOSH-2(Rev, 072019)




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Divasion of Labor and Tndustry Case No.: J8798.012-22
Maryland Oceupational Sadety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/ 2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Company Name: Mayor & City Couneil of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217

Citanon 2 Iem | Type ol Violation:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.132(d)(2): The employer did not venily, through a written certification, the identity of the
workplace evaluated, the person certifyving that the evaluation had been performed, and the date the
hazard assessment was done:

(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22

itatio Type of Violation:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.1030(c) (D) (iv): The Exposure Control Plan was not reviewed and updated at least annually
and whenever necessary as rcqumcd

(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22 | T
Condition: Employees wu@polmball) exposed (o b[oodbomc pathogcns while using needles 1o
.ldmnns(cr medications by mjection and wlulc dmwmg blood for laboratory testing.

Summary Crtation and Notification of Pesalty Fage 6ol 11 DLLRDLIMDOSH2(Rev. 694)




Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Dmvision of Labor and Industry Case No.: 18798.012.22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: O6/03/2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citation and Notification of Penalty
Company Name: Mayor & City Counal of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Balumore, MD 21217

“iatio m 3 Type of Violation:  Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 19101030 (2) ) (B): The employer did not ensure that the training was provided to employees
with occupational exposure at least annually:

(a) Date ol Violation; 06/03/22

Conditton: Employvees were potentally exposed to bloodborne pathogens while using needles to
administer medications by injection and while drawing blood for laboratory testing, where
training was last provided in 2019,

Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, training certification, etc.) is
required for this item, ) _

Sesrmary Caton and Notification of Peralty Page Tof 11 DELRDLIMDOSH-2(Rev. 6/4)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and Tndusiry Case No.: JB798-012-22
Maryland Occupational Safety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/04/2022-07 /052022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citati i Notification of Penal
Company Name: Mayor & Cuy Council of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Balumore, MDD 21217

Citation 2 Item 4 Type of Violaton:  Other-than-Senous

29 CFR 1910.1200(c) () (1): The employer did not compile a list of the hazardous chemicals known to be
present using a product identifier that was referenced on the appropriate safety data sheets:

(a) Date of Violaton: 06/03/22

Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not limited to, Birex Quat Wipes, a
category 2 chemical, capable of causing serious eve imitation and a category 3 flammable
liquid.

, ’ 0
Michael A. Penn, CSP, SMS
Atbng Assistant Commussioner

Summary Citation and Notfication of Penalty Page Sof 1) DLLR/DLIMDOSH-2(Rey. 654)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Dision of Labor ad Tndustry Casc No.: 1879801222

Marvknd Occupational Sidety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/2022.07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Citation and Notfication of Penalty

Company Name: Mayor & City Counail of Balumore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Balumore, MD 21217

INVOICE/
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number: 1599735

Citation | Item la, Serious
Citation | ltem 1b, Serious
Citation 2 Item 1, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 Item 2, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 ltem 3, Other-than-Serious
Citation 2 Item 4, Other-than-Serious

TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES:

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

Sanmary Crtatson and Notificabon of Penalty Page Saf 1) DLLRDLIMDOSH - 2(Rev 694)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599735

Division of Labor and Industry Casc No.: J8798-012-22
Maryland Occupational Salety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06/03/202207/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217

ABATEMENT VERIFICATION RESPONSE

Return To:

Maryland Occupational Safety and Health
10946 Golden West Drive, Suite 160
Hunt Valley, MD 21031

As a result of the inspection/investigation conducted at your establishment, certain alleged hazards/violations were disclosed as indicated in the enclosed CITATION(s).
YOU ARE OBLIGATED BY LAW to correct hazardous conditions or practices in your workspace.

Please complete this ABATEMENT VERIFICATION RESPONSE and retum it fo the Agency at the above address as soon as possible by indicating what action you have
taken to correct the violation(s) and date corrections were made within the time frame set forth. USE ADDITIONAL PAPER AS NECESSARY.

Citation Description Type & e Abatement Due Date Describe Action Taken Date Corrected
I-la 1910.1200(gX8) Serious’  August 25,2022

1-1b 1910.1200(h)(3)(iv) Scrio@ Septunba 20, 2022

2-1 1910.132(d)2) Other-than-Serious August 25, 2022

2-2 1910.1030(X ! Xiv)  Other-than-Serious August 25,2022

23 1910.1030(g)2)(ii)(B)  Other-than-Serious | September 20, 2022

24 1910.1200(e)(1Xi) Other-than-Serious August 25, 2022

Sce pages | through 4 of dus Citation and Notfication of Penalty for sformation on cnployer and employee rghits and respousibulines.

Crtaton and Notification of Penalty Page 1001 11 MDOLAEIMDOSH 2t Rev. 072019)



Maryland Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1599745

Division of Labor and Industry Case No.: J8798-012-22
Maryland Occupatonal Safety and Health (MOSH) Inspection Date: 06G/03/2022-07/05/2022
Issuance Date: 08/17/2022

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Dpt.-Druid Sexual Health
Inspection Site: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217

Allected employees and their represeitatives were informed on of abatement steps taken.
Dive

I certify that the above statements are true and correct.

Company Representative itle

Secc pages | Gurough 4 ol this Caation and Notilicasion of Pessadiy [oe information on employer and employee rghts and responisshilitics.

Crtatwon and Notificatson of Penalty Page llof 11 MDOLDLIMDOSH-XRev. 072019)



Maryland Occupational Safeg and Health

30-Day Memo - Region 2

Company Name: Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health
Department- Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Case #: J8798-012-22

Inspection #: 1599735

Date Opened: 06/03/22

Date Tumed in to Region: 07/18/22

Select all reasons case exceeded 30 days:

O Typeof Inspection (circle): _ F A m R_FU UR PP PR
NG
0  Numberof Violations: Serious 3 OTS: 3

O  Sampling

0  Multiple Days on Site: 1 total days
[0  LabResult Lag Time

OO  Process Safety Management

[0 Case Research (explain):

X Document Review (list): See Narrative

X Other (explain): See Narmative

Revised March 2016



Maryland OccuEational Safesx and Health

LEGAL NAME VERIFICATION COVER SHEET

Company Name:  Mayor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health
Department- Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Case #: J8798-012-22

Inspection #: 1599735

Legal name of the company was determined by:

X Employer completed legal name verification form (attached)

[0  Charter Service (attached)

through the state of

[0  Business License (attached)

O  Phone Call: Company Officer Name:

Title:

Legal Name Given:

Other (explain):

If reconciliation of legal name documents could not occur explain below:

Revised March 2016



Mazland Occuetlonal Safez and Health

Name Form
10946 Golden West Drive, Suite 160
Hunt Valley, MD 21031
Fax: 410-527-4488

Case Number:

Legal Name of Company: L7 000r> iy Howlts Lepartyarent
(Include correct gramumar, abbreviations, and capitalization)

Business Lic. #/ Sie __A//A

Mailing Address: 00/ . Faylttec S7-
balthhwre, Margland 21291

Street Address (if different from above):

SitePhonet ( ) I/

Telephone #: () /¢ 294 - /920
Fax # ( Y40 596 F¢08
Email address (no web pages please): Mﬁ(ﬁnlmclfy \Gev’

Federal Tax ID # or SN ifnone: 5 2.4 000 3¢ 9
Total number of Employees st jobsite: /7

Total number of Employees Company-wide: 9 20

The company is a: - Corporation

(Check only One) - General Partnership
(= LLP ~ Limited Liability Partnership
> LP - Limited Partnership

J- Other Partnership Type
- Sole Proprictorship: (naie)
# Non-Profit
L S Jau . _, certify that the above information is true and
correct to the best of my knowledge.
?}l"’la/ /"‘/ HR du.-l.uuoo Stned /4 2022
= W Title R

Revised March 2016



(410) 396-0176 | Extn




Page2
Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Nr 1599735

[CAGECode | | DUNS phas4 | |

06/03/2022 | 09:35AM | First Closing Conference | 07/05/2022 | 12:30 PM
06/03/2022  09:45 AM | Second Closing Conference 7 g
06/032022  10:30AM | Exit 06032022 01:00 PM

Type
N 02 BLOOD Bloodborne Pathogens Related Inspection
WWY ~ |AdvanceNotice?lN @
Interviewed? Y Flag for Follow- N 3
B | B - T N
Union? Y Reason for
b Follow-up
N

1899779 Complaint ‘Baltimore Health Department



Page3
Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Nr 1599735

InspectionNumber |Related Inspection Type  |Establishment Name

Director of Sexual
Transmitted Infection
Services

1515 W North Ave.
BALTIMORE, MD 21217

(410) 396-0176

1001 E. Fayette Strect

BALTIMORE, MD 21201
(410) 916-5131

Assistant Commissioner
for Clinical Services

AssL
Commissioner
for Cllmcal

1001 E. Fayette Street

BALTIMORE, MD 21202
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Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Nr 1599735




Page$
Mayor & City Council of Baltimore Inspection Nr 1599735

American Federation of State, County and
Municipal Employees Council 67

Union Representative
AFSCME

N

Credentials

Baltimore City Health Department-Human Resources Niela Magwood-

Phoenix

Sk e —

1001 E. Fayette Street

BALTIMORE, MD 21201

CSHO Signature Date o¢lo8 )22




INSPECTION NARRATIVE

Inspection Number 1599735

COVERAGE INFORMATION

Mavor & City Council of Baltimore DBA Baltimore City Health Department-Drusd Seaual Health Clinic (hereafler

referred 10 as Drud Sexual Health ) C ocatod at 1515 West North Avenue. Baltimore. MD 21217 I he Drud
Sexual Health Clinic provides free and confidential testing, diagnosis, and treatments for Sexually Transmitted
Infections (STl here are 13 employees who work at the North Avenue location and the clinic s operationa

Monday, Teesday, Wednesday, and Friday 9:00AM-4.00PM and Thursday 9.00AM-1:00PM

INTRODUCTION

A Maryland Occupational Safety and Health (MOSH) limited scope inspection was inttiated on June 2022 wit

the Drudd Sexual Health Clinic, in response to a complaint alleging possibly employees are exposed to bloodborne

pathogens (BBPs) when handling contaminated sharps without safety devices
At 9:35AM. Industrial Hygienmist (1H) Sabrina Moore made mitial entry 10 the main lobby ‘paticnt waiting arca IH

Moore presented credentials to mothy Badley, Meodical Claims Processor IH Moore mformed Mr. Bailey that

MOSH was on-site 10 open an inspection.  Mr, Bailey stated that he would inform Dr. Elizabeth Gilliams, Medica
Director that MOSH was on-site 10 open an inspection.  Dr. Galliams proceeded 10 come 1o the main lobby ‘patient
wasting arca and escorted TH Moore 10 her office

OPENING CONFERENCE NOTES

An opening conlerence was conducted « pe 03, 2002 at S45AM by TH Moore with Dy ( Lam Credentia

were presented, the | O cope., and 1] ol 1 pect aere d 1L and a complamt wa
provided I he employer's nghts and responsib were evplamed and Cog o the Manyland Occupationa
Safety and Health Act and Reg ations were provided. Dy, Gilliams explained that the employe ACIC Union |
IH Moore mformed Dr. Gilliams that the | on Reprosental iy rould need 10 be made aware that MOSH was o

e 1o conduct an inspection

iy L " o i L 1
and 1H Moore that 2 umon ¢ Presentative was not o Ic af the time of the mspext but w W provade TH Moo
with the contact imformatso 1 nta WOre ] W ™ OO ing ! ol et “w L
4 !

cussod

IH Moore ssked s (Gt NS 1 ther “wa A Writicn program on that npien e D« 27 WO reducs !
and advised TH Moore o speak to Phyilis | Hu in Resource Busingess win ix 1 hams provided contact
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Hazard Communication
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EMPLOYEE INTERVIEWS
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unaware of the location of the written BBP Exposure Control Plan. It was revealed during employee interviews
that annual BBP training had not been provided.

Hazard Convmunication

Employees were had no knowledge of the whereabouts of the written hazard communication program., 1H Moore
showed employees Hazard Communication Standard Pictograms and employees were unable 1o identify pictograms,
Employees stated that there were unaware of the contents of SDSs and stated there were no SDSs for chemicals used
in the workplace.

RECORDS REVIEW
On June 03, 2022, the following items were requested:

-Legal Name Form (received June 09, 2022),

-Bloodborne Pathogen (BBP) Written Exposure Control Plan. (On June 21, 2022, IH Moore sent an email to Dr.
Adena Greenbaum, Assistant Commissioner for Clinical Services, requesting the status of the document
request that was sent on June 03, 2022, On June 22, 2022, Dr. Greenbaum sent the written BBP ECP.  The
written BBP ECP did not include an exposure determination for all employees who have exposure to BBPs.)
-BBP Training Records (On June 22, 2022, Dr. Greenbaum sent IH Moore an email that stated the last time
employees received BBP training was in 2019 and explained that the clinic leadership was in the process of
scheduling BBP training Dr. Greenbaum also attached BBP training certificates with the email that was
sent to ITH Moore. Upon review of the BBP training certificates, employees did not receive BBP training in
2019; employees received BBP training on August 30, 2018,)

-Hepatitis B Vaccination Forms of all employees that are exposed to BBP (not received).

-Name and contact information of the contractor responsible for picking up BBP Regulaed Waste (received on
June 22, 2022).

-Name and contact information of the contractor responsible for sharps disposal (received on June 22, 2022).

-All requisitions that show requests for safety needles for the North Avenue location. (IH Moore received a
requisition from Ms, Hall dated on 06/03/22. [H Moore was told by Dr. Gilliams that there were more
requests that were put in prior to 06/03/22, release requisition was received dated 05/31/22 and 06001722 for
safety needles).

<OSHA 300 Logs (OSHA 300 Logs received on June 22, 2022).

-Written Hazard Communication Program (Received on June 28, 2022.  The written Hazard Communication
Program received was not updated to the Globally Harmonized System (GHS) of Classification and Labeling
of Chemicals to include information on SDSs, including the order of information and how employees can
obtain and use the appropriate hazard information.)

CLOSING CONFERENCE NOTES:

A closing conference was conducted on July 05, 2022 at [2:30PM by IH Moore with Dr, Adena Greenbaum,
Assistant Commissioner for Clinical Services, Ashley Cunningham, Clinic Manager, Nicole Robinson-Ezekwe,
Bureau Administrator, Clinical Services, Jennifer Martin, Deputy Commissioner, and Kathleen Smith, Health
Department Counsel. The complaint items, inspection findings, and recommendation of 3 Serious Citations and 3
Other-than-Serious Citations were discussed. The employer was provided with a copy of the MOSH Closing
Conference Guide.

LETTER TO THE COMPLAINANT:

1. (Alleged Complaint) Possibly employees are exposed to bloodbome pathogens when handling contaminated
sharps without safety devices.

Findings: MOSH Inspector, Sabrina Moore, conducted a walk-through of the facility on June 03, 2022. It
was revealed that employees use BD 21-Gauge Eclipse Needles to administer injections of medication
including, but not limited to, Benzathine Penicillin, Inspector Moore observed four BD Eclipse safety
needles in the medication prep area, Employees interviewed stated that there has been an ongoing issue with
the procurement process, which in turn causes a shortage of safety needles,  The manufacturer of Benzathine
Penicillin supplies safety needles with each injection, which employees have used to administer other
medications including but not limited to Ceftriaxone and Gentamicin, Non-safety needles were placed in the
medication prep area for use: however, employees used the manufacturer supplied Benzathine Penicillin
safety needles. During the inspection, Ashley Cunningham, Clinic Manager for the Baltimore City Health

Revised March 2016



location, brought & box BD Eclipse 21-Gauge safety needles und 2-medium sized clear biohazard specimen
bags with safety needies to the Druid Sexual Health Clinic. A requisition was observed dated on June 03,
2022 requesting a shipment of Magellan 22-Gauge Safety Needles with the desired date of 06/06/22,

Recommendations: No citations related to employees being exposed to bloodborne pathogens when handling
contaminated sharps without safety devices,

Citations for items not related to the complaint were recommended.

Revised March 2016



PENALTY ADJUSTMENT CALCULATION

L IISTORY ADJUS TMENT: Place "% ™ Im correct box
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Violation Worksheet

Print Date: August 8, 2022

Inspection Number 1599735

Opt. Insp. Number J8798-012-22

Establishment Name Mayor & City Council of Baltimore
DBA Name Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic
Type Of Violation Serious Citation Number |1 Item/Group 1/a
Standard 1910.1200(g)(8)
Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.1200(g)(8):The employer did not ensure that safety data sheets
Description were readily accessible during each work shift to employees when they were in
their work area(s):
(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22
Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not limited to,
Birex Quat Wipes, a category 2 chemical, capable of causing serious eye
irritation and a category 3 flammabie liquid.
Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, training
certification, etc) is required for this item. Y -
Recommended
Abatement Action
# Instances 1 # Exposed 10

Special Enforcement

Related Event Code

Justification

Type (REC)

General Duty Key Employer’s Relation to | Al
Words Hazard

Photo/Video Number 11,12 Substance Codes

Penalty

Severity Factor 2 ‘Samples Taken? 'No

'O of Workers Exposed | 10 'anoon:y of Exposure ‘7
‘Employee Proximity 7 |Stress/Working 1

5 T ' Conditions

Probability 6

Gravity 1 |a Gravity based Penalty  $2,000.00
# of Times Repeated ‘Multiplier ‘

Size 0% ‘Good Faith 5%
History 5% Decrease '

Calculated Penalty  $1,800.00 ‘Proposed Penalty $0.00
Proposed Penalty ' Public Sector




Abatement Details

# Days to Abate A 3 working days Abatement
Status

Abatement Due Date Date Abated

Abatement No Date Verified

Documentation

Required?

Abatement Completed

Description

Multi-Step Abatement

Type/Other Type .l Days to Abate .Ab.toment Due Completed Verify Date
Date (Status)

Employee Exposure

Violation # Exposed Employer Name and Address Duration Frequency Proximity
Instance to Telephone Numbers
Instance
Baltimore Andrea Fische
City Health
Department
-Druid
Sexual Home Phone

Health Clinic  Personal Mobile

Baltimore Shakua Hill
City Health

Department

-Druid

Sexual Home Phone

Suzanne Garcia

Baltimore
City Health
Department
Drusd
Sexual
Heaith Clhinic

» 4

Baltimore Khanne! Briddell
City Health

Department

Druid

Sexual Home Phone
Health Chinic

Worksheet Details

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: Employees work at the Baltimore City Health Department
Druid Sexual Health Clinic as Clinicians and Laboratory Technicians. Clinicians assigned job tasks include, but
are not imited to, accessing patients, diagnosing patients, and treating patients with Sexually Transmitted
infections (ST1) by administering medications through injections such as, Benzathine Pencillin, Ceftriaxone,
and Gentamicin, Laboratory Technicians assigned job tasks include, but are not limited to, using needles and



syringes to withdraw blood for lab testing, prepare samples for lab testing, and wiping down frequently
touched surfaces in the blood draw room and medication prep area, and taking inventory of medical supplies
for the clinical staff, such as ufety needies. Empioyees work 5 ccvt a week for 8 hourg a

Employees are at the point of danger, under low stress conditions, when the employer did not ensure that
safety data sheets were readily accessible during each work shift to employees when they were in their work
areas.

B) Equipment: N/A
C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/lliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Falure to maintain SDSs in the
workplace could lead to employees being unaware of the potential hazards when working with a chemical or
what to do in the event of chemical exposure

Severity: Senous,; employees worked with hazardous chemicals that included, but was not limited to, Birex
Quat Wipes, a category 2 chemical capable of causing senous eye irritation and a category 3 flammable.
Employees could incur injunes including, but not limited to, serous eye irritation. Employees directly handled
Birex Quat Wipes without access to SDSs

E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Gilkams, Medical Director, was aware and provided hazardous chemicals to
employees to perform assigned job tasks. Dr. Gilllams indicated that there were SDSs made available to
employees for chemicals used to perform assigned jJob tasks,

G) Comments: IH Moore informed Dr. Gilllams that employers are required to have SDSs in the workplace
for each hazardous chemical in which employees use to perform assigned job tasks

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Violation Worksheet
Print Date: August 8, 2022

1599735
18798-012-22

Inspection Number
Opt. Insp. Number

Establishment Name Mayor & City Council of Baltimore

DBA Name Baitimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Type Of Violation Serious Citation Number | Item/Group 1/Db

Standard 1910.4200(h)(3)(iv) x

Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.1200(h)(3)(iv):Employee training did not include the details of the

Description hazardous communication program developed by the employer, including an
explanation of labels received on shipped containers and the work place labeling
system used by their employer, and the safety data sheet, including the order of
information and how the employees can obtain and use the appropriate hazard
information:

|

(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22 Can/ '
Condition: Employees used Birex Quat Wipeste-wipes to disinfect frequently
touched services, a category 2 chemical, capable of causing serious eye irritation
and a category 3 flammable liquid, where employees were not trained regarding |
the new label elements and safety data sheets format.

Recommended

Abatement Action

# Instances 1 # Exposed 10 ‘

Special Enforcement

Related Event Code

Type (REC)

General Duty Key Employer’s Relation to | All
Words Hazard

Photo/Video Number 11,12 Substance Codes

Penalty

Severity Factor 2 ‘Samples Taken? ‘No

! ofa-w«_ltcrilxw .710 .anuency of Exposure . 7
Employee Proximity 7 'Strm]Worklng ' 1

i | Conditions

_Probability 6 |

Gravity 4 Gravity based Penalty  $2,000.00
# of Times Repeated Muttiglier |
Size 0% Good Faith 5%
e i | i
Calculated Penalty $0.00 ‘Proposed Penalty $0.00
Proposed Penalty



Abatement Details

Health Chinic  Personal Mobile

City Health
Department
Druid

Baltimore Shalkia Hll

# Days to Abate V“O working days Abatement
Status
Abatement Due Date Date Abated
Abatement No Date Verified
Documentation
Required?
Abatement Completed
Description
Multi-Step Abatement
Type/Other Type # Days to Abate Abatement Due Completed Verify Date
Date (Status)
Employee Exposure
Viclation # Exposed Employer Name and Address Duration Frequency Proximity
Instance to Telephone Numbers
Instance

Baltimore Andrea Fische

City Health

Department

Druid
Sexual Home Phone

Sexual MHame Phan
Mconr‘ Clln c_

Baltimore Suzanne Garcia

City Health
Department
Druid
Sexual
Health Chnic

City Health
Department
Druid

Baltimore Khannel Briddell

Sexual Haome Phone
Health Clinic

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: Employees work at the Baltimore City Health Department
Druid Sexual Health Clinic as Clinicians and Laboratory Technicians. Clinicians assigned job tasks include, but
are not limited to, accessing patients, diagnosing patients, and treating patients with Sexually Transmitted
Infections (ST1) by administering medications through injections such as, Benzathine Pencillin, Ceftriaxone,

Worksheet Details



and Gentamicin, Laboratory Technicians assigned Job tasks include, but are not limited to, using needies and
syringes to withdraw biood for lab testing, prepare samples for lab testing, and wiping down frequently
touched surfaces in the blood draw room and medication prep area, and taking inventory of medical supphes
for the clinical staff, such as safety needles, Employees work S days a week for 8 hours a day. During the
walk around inspection, IH Moore observed Birex Quat Wipes and Optim 33 TB Wipes. Dr. Elizabeth Gilliams,
Medical Director, stated that all staff members used either product to disinfect frequently touched areas
multiple times a day. Suﬂmbeumdudod anotummw chmm lab technicians, and fromt
desk staff, It was further explaiged . net o ! 2rath Lal! :
chairs, and examination rooms.,

I :
on SDSs, m-nnwbletomwfvcnswudhaowma Employeesananheponmdmnw under
low stress conditions, where employees were not trained regarding the new label elements and safety data
sheets format.

B) Equipment: N/A
C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/lliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Falure to maintain at the
workplace a written hazard communication program that was updated to the Globally Harmonized System
could lead to employees handling chemicals without knowledge of the hazards associated with specific
chemicals.

Severity: Other-than-Serous; administrative requirement.

E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Gilllams was aware and provided the chemicals for employees to use to
disinfect frequently touched surfaces.

G) Comments: [H Moore informed Dr. Gilliams on the necessity of having an updated written hazard
communication program and providing comprehensive, updated training.

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Violation Worksheet

Print Date: August 8, 2022

Inspection Number 1599735 ‘
Opt. Insp. Number J8798-012-22

Establishment Name | Mayor & City Council of Baltimore j
DBA Name Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic |
Type Of Violation Other-than-Serious | Citation Number |2 Item/Group 1
Standard 1910.132(d)(2) £ -
Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.132(d)(2):The employer did not verify, through a written ‘
Description certification, the identity of the workplace evaluated, the person certifying that l
the evaluation had been performed, and the date the hazard assessment was
done: \
L
(a) Date of Violation: 36/03 2022 _ ’
Recommended |
Abatement Action
# Instances 1 # Exposed a Y
Special Enforcement Related Event Code ; ™~
Type (REC) |
General Duty Key Employer’'s Relation to | All ‘
Words Hazard
Photo/Video Number Substance Codes 7 y “l
Penaity
Severity Factor 1 Samples Taken? No
# of Workers Exposed 4. Frequency of Exposure 1
Employee Proxim 1 Stress/Working 1
S ‘Condltlom
iProI_»gbillty 1 |
Gnv_lt_y 7 1 Gravity based Penalty $500.00
i,‘ ofi‘l’lﬂsu Repeated Multiplier
‘Size L 0% Good Faith 5%
imstory 5% Decrease
Calcgl:ud Pc!ulty $450.00 Proposed Penaity 1$0.00
Proposed Penalty Public Sector
Justification
Abatement Detalls
# Days to Abate 3 working days Abatement

Status




Abatement Due Date Date Abated

Abatement No Date Verified
Documentation
Required?
Abatement Completed
Description
Multi-Step Abatement
Type/Other Type # Days to Abate Abatement Due Completed Verify Date
Date (Status)
Employee Exposure
Viclation # Exposed Employer Name and Address Duration Frequency Proximity
Instance to Telephone Numbers
Instance
Baltimore Andrea Fische
City Health
Department
Druid
Sexua Home Phone

Health Clinic | Personal Mobile

Baltimore Shakia Ml
City Health

Department

Druid

Sexua Home Phone

oy _

Baltimore
City Health
Department
Druid
Sexua

Health Chini

Suzanne Garcia

Baltimore Khanne! Bnddel
City Health

Department

Druid

Sexua Mame Phon

Health Clnie

Worksheet Details

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: During the walk-around inspection, IH Moore observed
Beesure Super Shim Nitrile Powder Free Examination Gloves and StarMed Plus Powder Free Nitnile

Examination Gloves in the examination rooms and medication prep area. [H Moore asked Dr. Elizabeth
Gilliams, Medical DireCtor how personal protective equipre L (PPE) selection was determined

2d Dr. Githams for the written hazard assessment certificatior

IH Moore explained to Dr



Gilliams that employers are responsible for conducting a thorough walk-through of their establishment to
determine all of the potential hazards that are associated with each job task and after doing so; a written
hazard assessment certification must be completed and maintained at the workplace. Employees are at the
fringe of the danger zone, under low stress conditions, when the employer does not verify that the required
workplace hazard assessment had been performed through written certification,

B8) Equipment: N/A

C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/Iliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Other-than-Serious; administrative
requirement.

E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Elizabeth Gilliams, Medical Director, stated that a hazard assessment had
been conducted; however, a written hazard assessment certification had not been maintained.

G) Comments: [H Moore informed Dr. Gilliams of the requirement for employers to have a written hazard
assessment certification for the workplace.

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Violation Worksheet
Print Date: August 8, 2022

Inspection Number 1599735

Opt. Insp. Number J8798-012-22

Establishment Name Mayor & City Council of Baltimore
DBA Name Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic
Type Of Violation Other-than-Serious | Citation Number 2 Item/Group |2
Standard 1910.1030(c)(1)(iv)
Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.1030(c)(1)(iv): The Exposure Control Plan was not reviewed and
Description updated at least annually and whenever necessary as required,
(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22
Condition: Employees were potentially exposed to bloodborne pathogens while
using needles to administer medications by Injection and while drawing blood for
laboratory testing.
Recommended
Abatement Action
# Instances 1 # Exposed 4

Special Enforcement

Related Event Code Complaint

Type (REC) i - =y, . )
General Duty Key Employer's Relation to Al
Words Hazard

Photo/Video Number (3,4,5,6,7,8,9, 10 Substance Codes

Penalty
;veﬂtvhmr | 1 - Sampiu Tak.n'} No
;# of;;}km E;mod 'anuencyoyéxpmn '7
Employee Proximity 7 Stress/Working 1
} - Condiﬁons
|Probability \
‘Gnvlty .2 Gmitybnodl’cmlty '51.099.90
# _o!_'!’im_cg Repeated Multiplier
‘SIu 0% Good f!ith 5%
|History 5% Decrease

Ca_l_eulatodA Pcnalty ‘590000 7 Proposqd Penalty 1$0.00
Proposed Penalty | Public Sector
J_usﬁﬂutlon

Abatement Details

# Days to Abate 3 working days Abatement

Status




'Abatement Due Date Date Abated

'Abatement No Date Verified
Documentation
Required?
Abatement Completed
Multi-Step Abatement
Type/Other Type # Days to Abate  Abatement Due  Completed Verify Date
| S Date (mm) i
Employee Exposure
r ’ , Y - . .
Violation ‘l Exposed Employer Name and Address Duration Frequency Proximity
‘Instance to Telephone Numbers
Instance |
’ + - - * - - - -
| Baitimore Andrea Fische
City Health
Department
~Drusd
Sexual Home Phone:
) Heaith Clinic | Personal Mobile:
Baltimore
City Health
Department
~Druid
| Sexual
| Health Chinic
! S ) e i 4 4 4
| Baltimore Khanne! Briddell
| City Health
| Department
| “Druid

Sexual -
Health Clinic

et ee—— A — ) -

Worksheet Details

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: Employees work at the Baltimore City Health Department-
Druid Sexual Health Clinic as Chinicians and Laboratory Technicians, Clinicians assigned job tasks include, but
are not imited to, accessing patients, diagnosing patients, and treating patients with Sexually Transmitted
Infections (ST1) by administering medications through injections such as, Benzathine Penicillin, Ceftriaxone,
and Gentamicin, Laboratory Technicians assigned job tasks include, but are not limited to, using needies and
syringes to withdraw blood for lab testing, prepare sampies for lab testing, and wiping down frequently
touched surfaces in the blood draw room and medication prep area, and taking inventory of medical supplies
for the chinical staff, such as safety needles. Employees work S days a week for B hours a day. IH Moore
requested the written Bloodborne Pathogen (BBP) Exposure Control Plan (ECP) from Dr. Elizabeth Gilliams,
Medical Director. Dr. Gilliams advised IH Moore to speak with Phyliis Lee, Human Resource Business Partner
Ms. Lee provided the written BBP ECP that had not been updated to include employees working on the
clinical side of the Baltimore City Health Department, such as clinical staff. Employees are at the point of
danger, under low stress conditions, where the employer did not update the Exposure Control Plan at least
annually and whenever necessary as required

B) Equipment: N/A



C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/Iliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Sevenity: Other-than-Serious;
Administrative requirement,

E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Gilliams, Medical Director, was responsible for the general oversight of the
facility and directed the activities of the clinical staff. Dr. Gilliams was aware that employees were potentially
exposed to BBPs.

G) Comments: [H Moore informed Dr. Gilliams that the written BBP ECP would need to include all employees
who are exposed to BBPs

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Violation Worksheet
Print Date: August 8, 2022

1599735

Inspection Number : i
Opt. Insp. Number J8798-012-22
Establishment Name Mayor & City Council of Baltimore
DBA Name Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic
Type Of Violation Other-than-Serious Citation Number 2 Item/Group 3
Standard 1910.1030(g)(2)(ii)(B)
Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.1030(g)(2)(i1)(B):The employer did not ensure that the training
Description was provided to employees with occupational exposure at least annually:
(a) Date of Violation: June 03, 2022
Condition: Employees were potentially exposed to bloodborne pathogens while
using needles to administer medications by Injection and while drawing blood for
laboratory testing, where training was last provided in 2019.
Abatement documentation (photographs, receipts, copies of programs, training
certification, etc.) is required for this item,
Recommended
Abatement Action
# Instances 1 # Exposed 4
Special Enforcement Related Event Code Complaint
Type (REC)
General Duty Key Employer's Relation to Al
Words Hazard
Photo/Video Number 3,4,5,6,7,8,9, 10 Substance Codes
Penalty
‘Severity Factor 1 ‘Samples Taken? 'No
} — — — — - — — -
® qf Wodgen Egpooed 4 Frequency of Exposure | 7
Employee Proximity 7 Stress/Working 1
-Condmons
| Probability 4 | |
Grpylty = 2 Gravity based m.lty $1,000.00
# of Times Repeated Muitiplier ]
sm 0% Good Faith ‘S%
Mistoy 5% Decrease | il i :
Calculoug mtty .5900.00 Proposed Penalty $0.00
Proposed Penalty Public Sector
Justification




' # Days to Abate 20 working days 'Abatement

e § 3 Status =
imt ouo Date Date Abated
‘Abatement No Date Verified
Documentation
' Required? "I
Abatement Completed
Multi-Step Abatement
‘Type/Other Type  # Days to Abate  Abatement Due  Completed Verify Date
JLiL s * i - .Dn. ‘(Sutus) |
Employee Exposure
Violation # Exposed Employer Name and Address .Dwntloﬂ .anmq 'Proxlmny -
Instance to | Telephone Numbers
Instance
— S — .+ . * ) *
Baltimore Andrea Fische
,C-(y Health
Department
| “Druid
Sexual Home Phone
4 __|Heaith Ciinic | Personal Mobile
;Banlﬂ\ore Suzanne Garcia
City Health
| Department
“Druid
| Sexvual
Health Chinic

| Baltimore Khanne! Briddell
City Health
| Department
Druid

’ Sexval (ol ‘
| Health Clinic

e ———— — A ' ! ' | -

Worksheet Details

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: Employees work at the Baltimore City Health Department-
Druid Sexual Health Clinic as Clinicians and Laboratory Technicians, Clinicians assigned job tasks include, but
are not limited to, accessing patients, diagnosing patients, and treating patients with Sexually Transmitted
Infections (ST1) by administering medications through injections such as, Benzathine Penicillin, Ceftriaxone,
and Gentamicin. Laboratory Technicians assigned job tasks include, but are not limited to, using needles and
syringes to draw patient blood for lab testing, prepare samples for lab testing, and wiping down frequently
touched surfaces in the blood draw room and medication prep area, and taking inventory of medical supplies
for the clinical staff, such as safety needies. Employees work 5 days a week for 8 hours a day. IH Moore
requested BBP training records for employees who have occupational exposure to BBPs. Dr. Adena
Greenbaum, Assistant Commissioner for the Baltimore City Heailth Department, stated that employees had
not been provided BBP training since 2019 and further explained that BBP training is currently being
scheduled. Employees are at the point of danger, under low stress conditions, when the employer did not
ensure that cach employee with occupational exposure participated in a training program



B) Equipment: N/A

C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/Iliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Employees were at an increased
risk of exposure to blood borne pathogens (BBPs) when the employer does not provide BBP training designed
to eliminate or minimize occupational exposure.

Severity: Other than senious; employees had received initial training but had not received annual training
since before the pandemic,

E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Gilliams, Medical Director, was responsible for the general oversight of the
facility and directed the activities of the clinical staff. Dr. Gilllams was aware that employees were potentially
exposed to BBPs.

G) Comments: [H Moore informed Dr. Gilliams that employees who have occupational exposure to BBPs
shall receive initial BBP training at the start of employment and annually thereafter.

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Violation Worksheet

Print Date: August 8B, 2022

Inspection Number 1599735
Opt. Insp. Number )8798-012-22

Establishment Name Mayor & City Council of Baltimore

DBA Name Baltimore City Health Department-Druld Sexual Heam_\ Clinic .

Type Of Violation Other-than-Serious | Citation Number |2 Item/Group 4

Standard 1910.1200(e)(1)(i)

Alleged Violation 29 CFR 1910.1200(e)(1)(i):The employer did not compile a list of the hazardous

Description chemicals known to be present using a product identifier that was referenced on
the appropriate safety data sheets:
(a) Date of Violation: 06/03/22
Condition: Hazardous chemicals observed included, but were not limited to,
Birex Quat Wipes, a category 2 chemical, capable of causing serious eye
irritation and a category 3 flammable liquid.

Recommended

Abatement Action

# Instances 1 # Exposed 10

Special Enforcement Related Event Code

Type (REC)

General Duty Key Employer's Relation to | All

Words Hazard

Photo/Video Number 11, 12 Substance Codes

Penalty

Severity Factor 1 ’ ‘Samples Taken? No

* of \;grko};ﬁxpoud ’ 10 jFrequoncny Exposure .7

Employee Proximity (7 Stress/Working 1

| .Condmons

Probability 6 | .

‘Gnylty \ |3 Gmlty based Penalty _s1.soo.oo

'# gf;l’lmoc_lhputod _ _Multipllqr |

Size 0% Good Faith S%

r ‘ . .

T’Hltt’ory . 7 /5% Decrease | '

’Culeulated Penalty $1,350.00 Proposed Penalty $0.00

Proposed Penalty Public Sector

Justification

Abatement Details

# Days to Abate 3 working days Abatement




. Status

Abctmnt Due Dato Date Abated

Abatement No Date Verified

Documentation

!.qulrod?

Abatement Completed

Description

Multi-Step Abatement

Type/Other Type ,. Days to Abate -mtmnt Due <Complﬂo¢ -Voﬂ'v Date
Date (Status)

Employee Exposure

Violation # Exposed Employer Name and Address Duration Frequency Proximity
Instance to Telephone Numbers
Instance
Baltimore Andrea Fische
City Health
Department
Druid
Sexual Home Phone

Health Chinic | Personal Mobille

- *

Baltimore Shakia Hill
City Health
Department
Druid
Sexual
Health Clinic

Home Phone

Baltimore Suzanne Garcla
City Health
Department
Druid
Sexual
Health Chnic

. +

.
4

Baltimore Khanne! Briddel!
City Health
Department

Druid

Sexual MHome Phone

Worksheet Details

A) Hazards-Operation/Condition-Accident: Employees work at the Baltimore City Health Department-
Druid Sexual Health Clinic as Clinicians and Laboratory Technicians. Clinicians assigned job tasks include, but
are not limited to, accessing patients, diagnosing patients, and treating patients with Sexually Transmitted
Infections (STI) by administering medications through injections such as, Benzathine Penicillin, Ceftnaxone,
and Gentamicin, Laboratory Technicians assigned job tasks include, but are not imited to, using needies and
syringes to withdraw blood for lab testing, prepare samples for lab testing, and wiping down frequently
touched surfaces in the blood draw room and medication prep area, and taking inventory of medical supplies
for the clinical staff, such as safety needles. Employees work 5 days a week for 8 hours a day. During the



members included, but was not limited to, clinicians, lab technicians, and front desk staff. It was further

explained that wi were most often at the registration desks, phiebotomy chairs, and examination rooms
b Employees

are at the point of danger, under low stress conditions, when employer did not compile a list of the hazardous
chemicais known to be present using a product identifier that was referenced on the appropriate safety data
sheets

B) Equipment: N/A
C) Location: N/A

D) Injury/Iliness (and Justifications for Severity and Probability): Failure to develop and maintan a
chemical inventory list could lead to unknown chemicals being used by employees in the workplace

Severity: Other-than-Serious; administrative requirement
E) Measurements: N/A

F) Employer Knowledge: Dr. Gilliams was aware and provided the chemicals for employees to use to
disinfect frequently touched surfaces

G) Comments: IH Moore informed Dr. Gilliams that the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
(OSHA) hazard communication standard required employers to have a written hazard communication
program that included, at a minimum, Safety Data Sheets, information on container labeling, training, and a
chemical inventory list

H) Other Employer Information: N/A



Maryland Occupational Safety and Health

Inspection Number: COSHO 1D: J8798 | Case Number: | Date:
1599735 J8798-012-22 13 July 2022
Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic ‘
{ Page 10f 6
A PhotoID #:1 | Date: 03 June 2022

Location (Photo & Photographer):
1515 W North Ave

Baltimore, MD 21217

Taken by: IH Moore

Description: Main entrance to the
Baltimore City Health Department-
Druid Sexual Health Clinic.

Photo ID #: 2 Date: 03 June 2022

Location (Photo & Photographer):
Patient Waiting Area

Taken by: IH Moore

Description: Patient Waiting Area
where patients wait to be seen by
Clinical Staff.

Revised March 2016



Maryland Occupational Safety and Health

" Inspection Number: ' COSHO 1D: J8 798
1599735

" Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Revised March 2016

Case Number Date
J8798-012-22 13 July 2022

Page g0l 6

PhotoID #: 5 Date: 03 June 2022

' Location (Photo & Photographer)

Medication Prep Area

Taken by: IH Moore

Description: BD Eclipse 21-Gauge
Needle with safety cover. During the
walk-around inspection, IH Moore
observed 4 safety needles in the
medication prep area.  TH Moore asked
Dr. Gilliams what were clinicians to use
if the BD Edlipse safety needles had run

PhotolD #:6 | Date 03 June 2022

Location (Photo & Photographer)
Storage Room

Taken byv: ITH Moore

Description: Entrance to the storage
room where medical supplies are
located



Mazland OccuEational Safez and Health

"Inspection Number: | COSHO ID: J8798 T CaseNumber: | Date:
1599735 JB798-012-22 13 July 2022
“Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic : 3 3
Page 50f6

- S — — p— - — —

PhotoID #:9 | Date: o3 June 2022

" Location (Photo & Photographer):
Conference Room

Taken by: ITH Moore

Description: Biohazard Specimen Bags
containing BD Eclipse Safety Needles.
During the inspection, Ashley
Cunningham, Clinic Manager for the
Baltimore City Health Department-
Eastern Family Planning Clinic, brought
a box of BD Eclipse Needles along with
two medium Biohazard Specimen bags
that contained BD Eclipse Needles

Photo ID #: 10 | Date: 03 June 2022

|
{ Location (Photo & Photographer): ‘
| Conference Room

\

Taken by: IH Moore
i Description: Biohazard Specimen Bags
| containing BD Eclipse Safety Needles
| During the inspection, [H Moore
requested the written BBP Exposure
| Control Plan (ECP).

| written BBP ECP in the STAT

Laboratory during the walk-around
| inspection. On June 27, 2022, Phyllis
Lee, Human Resource Business Partner
emailed TH Moore the written BBP ECP
that did not contain an exposure ‘
determination for all staff members who
have occupational exposure to BBPs

Revised March 2016



Maryland Occupational Safety and Health

~lnspcclifmv‘\'umhcr: 7 | COSHO 1D: J8798 i | Case Number: | Date:
1599735 1‘ J8798-012-22 13 July 2022

" Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic "07
Page 2 of 6

[ Photo1D #:3 | Date: 03 June 2022 1

Location (Photo & Photographer):
Medication Prep Area ‘

Taken by: IH Moore
Description: Medication Prep Area.,
Medical cart with supplies that
| included, but was not limited to, alcohol
prep wipes, sharps container, BD 1-ml
| Syringes, BD 22-Gauge Precision Glides
Needles, BD 5-ml Syringes, BD |
| Plastipak 3-ml Syringe Luer-Lok Tip
with Blunt Fill Needles, BD Eclipse 21-
J Gauge Needles, and Monoject Blunt
Cannula 18-Gauge Needles.

|
|

PhotoID #:4 | Date: 03 June 2022

| Location (Photo & Photographer):
Medication Prep Area

Taken by: ITH Moore ‘
" Description: BD Eclipse Safety Needles \
that are used to administer medications |
including, but not limited to,

Benzathine Penicillin, Ceftriaxone, and
Gentamicin. During the walk-around |
inspection, there were 4 needles with
engineered sharps injury protection.

Revised March 2016




Maryland Occupational Safety and Health

" Inspection Number: | COSHO 1D: J8798
| 1599735

Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Case Number: | Date:
J8798-012-22 13 July 2022

— S i S —

Page 4 of 6

| [Fone] |

Photo ID #: 7 Date: 03 June 2022

Location (Photo & Photographer): |
Storage Room

Taken by: IH Moore l

observed in the storage room included,
but was not limited to, BD Precision
Glide 22-Gauge Needles, BD Vacutainer |
Eclipse Blood Collection Needles and
Dynarex Hypodermic Needles were
observed. Dr. Gilliams looked around

in the storage room and was unable to
find any additional needles with
engineered sharps injury protection.

\
|
—

Revised March 2016

Photo ID #: 8 | Date: 03 June 2022
Fi&itﬁiﬁh&ﬁ&? Photographer):
Conference Room

1 Taken by: IH Moore

' Description: During the inspection,
Ashley Cunningham, Clinic Manager for
the Baltimore City Health Department-
Eastern Family Planning Clinic, brought
a box of BD Eclipse Needles along with
two medium Biohazard Specimen bags
that contained BD Eclipse Needles,




NOTIFICATION: UNPROGRAMMED INSPECTION

To: Regional Supervisor, Cristina Campbell

From: Assistant Chief of Compliance, Mark Broadwater

Date Emailed: 5/31/2022

Employer: Baltimore Health Department — Sexual Health Clinic
Site Address: 1515 West North Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21217
UPA Number: F1142/1899779

»-Complaint- X |

Referral-
Accident-

Fatality-

Please note this inspection must be opened by: 6/6/2022




RID | 0352420 Complaint Closed? 'No

T s [ 0531/2022 (CSHO Assigned | Sup Assigned
L_______J‘ Receipt Time 0930 AM 18798 C9954
o Electronic Complaint 1007722

l ] Number ,

0531722022  Contact with Source 06072022 Phone Discussion  Acknow ledgemen

t-Receipt of




Mazland OccuEational Safetz and Health

Inspection Number: COSHO ID: J8798 Case Number:
1599735 J8798-012-22

Employer: Baltimore City Health Department-Druid Sexual Health Clinic

Date:
13 July 2022

e—

Page 6 of 6

Photo ID #: 11 | Date: 03 June 2022

'\\) '\L':“)) B I OTRO L. w | Location (Photo & Photographer):

~ SAFETY DATA SHEET Taken by: TH Moore

Description: Birex Quat Wipes SDS.

Product Name: Birex® Quat Wipes According to the manufacturer’s SDS,
K the chemical is characterized as a

Product Code: 295507 category 3 flammable liquid, a category
Rece ded . o d R ons fo 2 chemical, capable of causing serious
eye irritation, and category 3 specific
target organ toxicity.

Photo ID #: 12 | Date: 03 June 2022 |

Classification " Location (Photo & Photographer):
Flammable bquid :‘M_ Taken by: IH Moore

_Eye kritation 2A

_Specific target organ loxicity (single exposure) 3 Description: Hazard Identification for
Label Elements Birex Quat Wipes.

Signal Word(s): Waming
Hazard Statement(s): Flammable liquid and vapor. Causes serious eye iritation,

Revised March 2016



Notice of Alleged Safety or Health Hazards

July 13, 2022 9:40 AM

Sexual Health Clinic
1515 West North Avenue
BALTIMORE, MD 21217

1515 West North Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21217




[ . . Complaint
| 05/3172022 | Valid =Y
- 05/31/2022 | Do Inspection = Y




t

e DIVISION OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY
hn l d MARYLAND OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
sivia ry an 10946 GOLDEN WEST DRIVE, SUITE 160
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR HUNT VALLEY. MD 21031

MOSH Complaint Number: E-0077-22
Submitted: 05/31/2022 09:09 AM

MOSH Online Complaint Form

1. Company Name:* [Balﬂmoce City Health Department ]

2. Company Mailing Address:

Street Address:* |1515 W North Ave |

City:* |Baltimore |

State:* |Maryland I Zip:*

County:* IBanmom City ]

3. Worksite Location:* Is worksite location different from Company Mailing Address ? ' YES * NO

4. Company Telephone Number:* [(410) 396-0176 Mmecty

5. Management Official in Charge:* |Elizabeth Gilliams MD |

6. Type of Business:* |Health Department Sexual Health Clinic |

7. Description of occupational safety or health hazard. Describe each occupational safety or health hazard to
which you believe empioyees are exposed. Indicate the approximate number of employees exposed to or threatened
by each hazard.*

The dlinic is not reliably supplied with needles that either retract, or may be covered after withdrawal from a person.
The manufacturer of one medicine supplies the required safety needle.

The Sexual Health clinic at the health depariment does not a reliable supplier of safety needles for providing other
injections. Additionally, the department responsible for ordering clinic supplies is frequently unable to adequately
supply the required clinical equipment.

This matter has been investigated by the Baltimore City Inspector General (hitps://www.baltimoresun.com/health/bs
-hs-druid-heights-health-clinic-ig-report-202 10929-yqyf5iéqz5inrpbhoSex7bomte-story.himi),

8. Hazard location. Identify the specific building, room, or worksite where each alleged hazard is located.”

{1515 West North Avenue, Sexual Health Clinic, 2nd floor, Baltimore, MD 21217 |

Page 1 of 2



9. This condition has been brought to the attention of: (Choose all that apply)
v Employer

» Other Government agency (specify)

— — — . ]

Inspector General Baltimore City
| S— —

10. The undersigned complainant is a(n):*
s Current Employee
Former Employee
Employer
immediale Relative of a Current Employee (Le Spouse, Parent) Specify
Authorized Representative of Employees (you must indicale the organization and your tithe)
Other: (Specity)
10a. For current employee, immediate relative, or authorized representative of employee only. Please indicate
your desire:*
& Do NOT reveal my name 1o my Employer

My name may be revealed 1o my Employer

11. Complainant Name

First Name* [N | Last Name' - = 5 |
12. Complainant Home or Cell Phone Number:* _ |

13. Complainant Home Mailing Address:*

Street Address.”

City:*

State:”*

14. Complainant Emall Address:*

I bokeve there is 8 violabon of a safely or health standard, a danger that threatens physical
harm, or an “imminent dangor” exists

16.  + This constitutes my electronic signature.’
If this box is checked, this submission shall be considered as an authorzed writlen signature
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Case Number: J8798-012-22

1 BBP Exposure Control Plan (ECP) received on June 22, 2022. During the
walk-around inspection, [H Moore observed the BBP ECP on-site in the
BDC laboratory. IH Moore informed Dr. Greenbaum and Dr. Gilliams
that the BBP ECP should include an exposure determination for all
employees who have occupational exposure to BBPs,

2 Employee BBP Training Records. Employees were last provided training
on August 30, 2018. Dr. Greenbaum indicated that employees were not
provided annual BBP training and stated that clinic leadership was in the
process of scheduling BBP training.

3 Purchase Order for Magellan 22-gauge Safety Needles dated on 06/06/22.

4 Release Requisition dated 05/31/22 and 06/01/22 for Safety Needles.

5 OSHA 300 Logs from 2018-2021

6 Written Hazard Communication Program (IH Moore informed Dr.
Greenbaum and Dr. Gilliams that the written hazard communication
program had not been updated to the Globally Harmonized System of
Classification and Labeling of Chemicals.)

7 Safety Date Sheet (SDS) Birex Quat Wipes

8 SDS Optim 33 TB Wipes
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